



STATE BAR OF MICHIGAN

Michigan IT Lawyer

A Publication of the State Bar of Michigan Information Technology Law Section

<http://www.michbar.org/it>

Bits and Bytes from the Chair

By Charlie Bieneman, *Rader, Fishman & Grauer PLLC*

Table of Contents

August 2012 ■ Vol. 29, Issue 5 ■ Special Edition

- Bits and Bytes from the Chair1
- Recommended Changes to the "Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Information Technology Law Section of the State Bar of Michigan"3

Michigan IT Lawyer is published every other month. Previously published issues of the *Michigan IT Lawyer*, and its predecessor the *Michigan Computer Lawyer*, are available at <http://www.michbar.org/it/newsletters.cfm>. If you have an article you would like considered for publication, send a copy to:

Michael Gallo
2700 Renshaw Drive
Troy, Michigan 48085
e-mail: michael@gallo.us.com

As summer draws to a close, I wanted to remind all IT Law Section members to register for our Section's 5th Annual IT Law Seminar, to be held September 27, at the St. John's Inn in Plymouth. It is hard to believe that this is our fifth year! Once again, we have a fantastic lineup of speakers and topics, as well as great opportunities to network with fellow practitioners at lunch and at the complimentary reception at the end of the day.

Also, regardless of whether you attend the seminar, all Section members are invited and encouraged to attend our Annual Meeting, to be held during the Seminar's lunch hour. Please RSVP to me directly at cab@raderfishman.com if you wish to attend the luncheon and Annual Meeting only.

During the past year, Council members have reviewed the Section's bylaws and assembled a list of recommended changes. At an August 2012 meeting, Council members unanimously accepted a petition to amend the bylaws, as presented in this newsletter. These proposed amendments will be presented at the Annual meeting on September 27, 2012, for approval by the Section members.

At this year's Annual Meeting, recommended Section bylaw amendments will be presented to the members for review and approval. This special edition of the Section newsletter attaches the proposed amendments for the Section's review.

And again, please register for the Annual Seminar. You can view our planned program, and register for the seminar online, by following this link:

http://www.icle.org/modules/store/seminars/schedule.aspx?PRODUCT_CODE=2012CI1158.

I hope to see everyone there!

Charlie Bieneman

2011-2012 Section Chair





2011-2012

Information Technology Section Council

Chairperson ■ Charles A. Bieneman
Chairperson-elect ■ Karl A. Hochkammer
Secretary ■ Ronald S. Nixon
Treasurer ■ Michael Gallo

COUNCIL MEMBERS

Charles A. Bieneman
Susanna C. Brennan
William Cosnowski, Jr.
Nilay Sharad Davé
Jeanne M. Dunk
Michael Gallo
Brian A. Hall
Daniel J. Henry
Karl A. Hochkammer
William J. Lamping, Jr.
Tatiana Melnik
Jeanne M. Moloney
Ronald S. Nixon
Carla M. Perrota
Vincent I. Polley
Claudia Rast
Isaac T. Slutsky
David R. Syrowik

Immediate Past Chair

Mark G. Malven

Ex-Officio

Claudia V. Babiarz
Jeremy D. Bisdorf
Thomas Costello, Jr.
Kathy H. Damian
Christopher J. Falkowski
Robert A. Feldman
Sandra Jo Franklin
Mitchell A. Goodkin
William H. Horton
Lawrence R. Jordan
Charles P. Kaltenbach
Michael S. Khoury
J. Michael Kinney
Edward F. Langs*
Thomas L. Lockhart
Janet L. Neary
Kimberly A. Paulson
Paul J. Raine*
Jeffrey G. Raphelson
Frederick E. Schuchman III
Steven L. Schwartz
Carol R. Shepard
David Sinclair*
Anthony A. Targan
Stephen L. Tupper

Commissioner Liaison

Richard J. Siriani

Newsletter Editor

Michael Gallo

*denotes deceased member



STATE BAR OF MICHIGAN



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY LAW SECTION

Annual Meeting and Seminar
September 27, 2012

St. John's Inn in Plymouth
44045 Five Mile Road
Plymouth, Michigan 48170

For Details and Registration Information, go to:

http://www.icle.org/modules/store/seminars/schedule.aspx?PRODUCT_CODE=2012CI1158.

Recommended Changes to the "Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Information Technology Law Section of the State Bar of Michigan"

ARTICLE I NAME AND PURPOSE

SECTION 1. NAME. The name of this section is the Information Technology Law Section of the State Bar of Michigan.

SECTION 2. PURPOSES. The purposes of the Section are to review, comment upon, and apprise members of the State Bar of Michigan and others of developments in the law relating to information technology, including:

- (a) the protection of intellectual and other proprietary rights;
- (b) sale, leasing, distribution, provision, and use of, hardware, software, services, and technology, including computer and data processing equipment, computer software and services, games and gaming, information processing, programming, and computer networks;
- (c) electronic commerce;
- (d) electronic implementation of governmental and other non-commercial functions;
- (e) the Internet and other networks; ~~and~~
- (f) privacy;
- (g) mobile computing;
- (h) social media
- (i.) data security; and
- (if) associated contract and tort liabilities, and related civil and criminal legal consequences.

SECTION 3. IMPLEMENTATION OF PURPOSE. This Section shall endeavor to accomplish these purposes by one or more of the following things.

- (a) Publishing a periodic or occasional newsletter with articles and information of interest to its members;
- (b) Conducting and sponsoring seminars, institutes and conferences, either independently or in cooperation with the Institute of Continuing Legal Education ("ICLE"), with other appropriate organizations, and with other Sections and committees of the State Bar of Michigan;
- (c) Appointing, maintaining, and supporting special committees to conduct research regarding, and study, specific legal problems confronting the Section's members and their

clients;

- (d) Formulating recommendations to the Board of Commissioners of the State Bar of Michigan
- (e) Publishing books and other writings related to the Section's purposes;
- (f) Maintaining liaison with other professional and trade associations interested in the same subject matter; and
- (g) Such other things as the Section is permitted by law and other governing charters and/or agreements to do.

ARTICLE II MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1. DUES AND ENROLLMENT.

- (a) The Council may from time to time set the amount of dues, the period(s) for which such dues shall apply, and the classes of members to which such dues shall apply. Subject to any provisions of the Bylaws of the State Bar of Michigan, the Council may, in its discretion, set special dues, or waive dues, for one or more classes of members. Until the Council so changes the dues or period for which such dues apply, the dues shall be **\$25 annually** (\$10.00 in the case of members of the Law Student Section of the State Bar of Michigan) per fiscal year of the Section. Dues are payable in advance.
- (b) The fiscal year of the Section begins on October 1 and continues until the next succeeding September 30.
- (c) The Section shall, upon request to the Executive Director of the State Bar of Michigan and upon payment of dues for the then-current fiscal year (October 1 - September 30), **enroll** as a member of the Section any member of the State Bar of Michigan. Members so enrolled and whose dues are so paid shall constitute the membership of the Section. Any member of the Section whose annual dues are more than three months past due and remain past due for 30 days shall thereafter cease to be a member of the Section.
- (d) No member who is not a member of the State Bar of Michigan may vote on any matter submitted to a vote of the members of the Section.

SECTION 2. ASSOCIATE MEMBERS. Full-time members of the faculties of law schools and other institutions of higher learning who are not active members of the State Bar of Michigan may become non-voting associate members of the Section upon payment of dues.

SECTION 3. LAW STUDENTS. Members of the Law Student Section of the State Bar of Michigan may become non-voting associate members of the Section upon payment of any dues that the Council may require.

~~**SECTION 4. NEW MEMBERS OF THE STATE BAR OF MICHIGAN.** The Council may waive for any member of the State Bar of Michigan who has been a member of the State Bar of Michigan for any period of less than two years all or any part of the Section dues for the first~~

~~fiscal year or portion thereof in which such member of the State Bar of Michigan first joins the Section. The Council may, within these limits, craft offers calculated to encourage new members of the State Bar of Michigan to join the Section.~~

ARTICLE III OFFICERS

SECTION 1. OFFICERS. The officers of this section shall be the Chairperson, the Chairperson-Elect, the Treasurer, and the Secretary ("Officer(s)"). No person shall serve as Chairperson or Chairperson-Elect for two (2) consecutive terms, and no person shall serve as an Officer for more than four (4) consecutive terms.

SECTION 2. SECTION COUNCIL. There shall be a Section Council of not less than twelve (12) and no more than ~~consisting of~~ eighteen (18) members, all of whom shall be voting members of the Section, including the four (4) Officers, ~~together with fourteen (14) other members~~, all ~~eighteen (18)~~ of whom shall be elected by the Section as hereinafter provided. Each past Chairperson shall remain an ex officio (non-voting) member of the Council for as long as he or she chooses to serve in that capacity, and none of said ex officio members shall be subject to removal for failure to attend meetings, provided however, that, subject to Section 7 of this Article, any past Chairperson may be elected to voting membership on the Council.

SECTION 3. BEGINNING AND END OF TERM. The Chairperson, the Chairperson-Elect and Treasurer and Secretary shall be nominated and elected by the Council, in a manner hereinafter provided, immediately following each annual meeting of the Section, to hold office for a term beginning at the close of the annual meeting at which they shall have been elected and ending at the close of the next succeeding annual meeting of the Section (and until their successors shall have been elected and qualified).

SECTION 4. TERM; SECTION COUNCIL.

At least four (4) and not more than six (6) Council members shall be elected each year, unless more members are necessary so that the Council shall have at least twelve (12) members. At the Annual Section Meeting, the Section shall elect at least one-third (1/3) of the then current number of Council members for three (3) year terms, and such Council members shall continue as Council members for a term of three (3) years and/or until their resignation, removal, or otherwise until their successors are elected and shall qualify. The members of the Section may elect at each annual meeting of the Section up to six Section members to serve on the Council for terms of three (3) years.

SECTION 5. DEFINITION OF "YEAR." A "year," as herein used, is the interval of time between annual meetings of the Section.

SECTION 6. DURATION OF COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP. No person shall be eligible for election to serve as a member of the Council if that person is then a voting member of the Council and has been continuously for a period of six (6) years, except for Officers, who shall be allowed to remain on the Council for so long as they remain an Officer of the Council, subject to Section 1 of this Article.

SECTION 7. ELECTION OF AND TERMS OF OFFICERS. Immediately following each annual meeting of the Section, the Council shall elect, from the voting membership of the Council, for the one-year term ending as provided in Section 3 of this Article; one (1) member of the Council to serve as each of the four (4) Officers of the Council: Chairperson; Chairperson-

Elect; Treasurer; and Secretary; except that, at each annual meeting of the Section, unless he or she shall submit written resignation or shall have failed to successfully perform the duties of his or her office; the Chairperson-Elect, if any, shall automatically succeed to the office of Chairperson of the Section for the next one-year term; the Secretary, if any, shall automatically succeed to the office of Chairperson-Elect of the Section for the next one-year term; and the Treasurer, if any, shall automatically succeed to the office of Secretary of the Section for the next one-year term.

ARTICLE IV NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF OFFICERS

SECTION 1. NOMINATION. At or before each annual meeting of the Section, the Chairperson, with the advice of the Chairperson-Elect, shall appoint a Nominating Committee of at least three (3) members of the Council, which Committee shall make and report nominations to the Section for vacancies on the Council. The Nominating Committee shall not nominate any of its own members. Other nominations for the Council may be made from the floor, but must be made and seconded only by voting members of the section.

SECTION 2. ELECTIONS. All elections may be by voice vote, written ballot or any other means authorized by the Council. Only voting members of the Section shall be entitled to vote.

ARTICLE V DUTIES OF OFFICERS

SECTION 1. CHAIRPERSON. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Section and of the Council. The Chairperson shall formulate and present at each Annual Meeting of the State Bar of Michigan a report of the work of the Section for the then past year. The Chairperson shall perform such other duties and acts as usually pertain to the office.

SECTION 2. CHAIRPERSON-ELECT. Upon the death, resignation, or during the disability, of the Chairperson, or upon his or her refusal to act, the Chairperson-Elect shall perform the duties of the Chairperson for the remainder of the Chairperson's term except in the case of the Chairperson's disability and then only during so much of the term as the disability continues.

SECTION 3. TREASURER. The Treasurer shall keep a true record of all monies received and disbursed and shall report thereon to the Council whenever requested. Annually, he or she shall submit a financial report for presentation to the membership of the Section. Consistent with the bylaws of the State Bar of Michigan, he or she shall be responsible for forwarding all monies of the Section which come into his or her hands to the bookkeeping department at the State Bar Headquarters in Lansing for deposit and credit to the account of the Section. Further, unless waived on a meeting-by-meeting basis by vote of the Council, the Treasurer shall present a current financial report at each meeting of the Council.

SECTION 4. SECRETARY. The Secretary shall be the custodian of all books, records, papers, documents, and other property of the Section, other than those entrusted to the Treasurer under Section 3 of this Article. He or she shall keep a true record of the proceedings of all meetings of the Section and of the Council, whether assembled or acting under submission. With the Chairperson, he or she shall prepare the Section's Annual Report. The Secretary, in conjunction with the Chairperson, as authorized by Council, shall attend generally to the business of the Section.

**ARTICLE VI
DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE COUNCIL**

SECTION 1. PRIMARY DUTIES AND POWERS. The Council shall have general supervision and control of the affairs of the Section, and shall elect Officers of this Section (as provided in Article III, Section 7, and in Section 3 of this Article VI). The Chairperson and the Treasurer, or either of them, may authorize expenditure of Section funds in amounts up to and including \$~~500-750~~ per transaction. Any contract that requires the expenditure of Section funds in excess of \$~~500-750~~ must be approved by the Council. Any expenditure of a kind approved by the Council in any budget of the Section is considered authorized to the extent of the allocation in the budget. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the Council nor any officer of the Section may, without the approval of the State Bar of Michigan Board of Commissioners, authorize commitments or contracts that require the payment of more money during any fiscal year than the total of: (a) the amount received in Section dues for such fiscal year; and (b) any unexpended funds remaining in the Section treasury.

SECTION 2. COMMITTEES. ~~The standing committees of the Section follow:~~

- ~~(a) Annual Meeting~~
- ~~(b) Contracts~~
- ~~(c) Membership~~
- ~~(d) Newsletter~~
- ~~(e) Proprietary Rights~~
- ~~(f) Spring Luncheon~~
- ~~(g) Writing Award~~

The Council may establish such standing committees (and subcommittees) and ad hoc committees (and subcommittees) as the Council may determine from time to time to further the interests and goals of the Section. The Council may authorize the Chairperson to appoint one or more other committees. All committees shall consist of Section members. Committees may perform such duties and exercise such powers as the Council may direct, subject to the limitations of these bylaws and of the bylaws of the State Bar of Michigan. The Chairperson shall appoint the Chairperson and members of such committees and may remove any Chairperson or member from such committees and fill any vacancies on such committees created from time to time.

SECTION 3. VACANCIES. If, during the course of the year, the number of Council members drops to twelve (12) or less, t~~The Council, during the interim between annual meetings of the Section, may fill vacancies in its own membership shall appoint one or more interim Council Members as necessary~~ or in the offices of Treasurer or Secretary or--in the event of a vacancy in both the office of Chairperson and Chairperson-Elect--in the office of Chairperson to serve in an interim capacity until the next Annual Section Meeting. No vacancy in the office of Chairperson-Elect shall be filled other than by a vote of the voting members of the Section at the annual meeting next succeeding such vacancy. ~~A member of the Council or Officers so appointed shall serve until the close of the next annual meeting of the Section.~~ At such annual meeting, the voting members of the section may elect a member to serve for the remainder of the term, if any.

SECTION 4. REGULAR MEETINGS, LOCATIONS, INVITEES. Regular meetings of the Council shall be held at times and locations to be determined by the Chairperson, and the schedule of regular meetings for each fiscal year shall be published in advance. At least three regular meetings of the Council shall be held in each fiscal year. Members of the Section shall be entitled to attend all meetings of the Council. The Chairperson shall be entitled to invite persons who are not members of the Section to attend any regular or special meeting of the Council. Upon

request of any member of the Council, the Council may meet in executive session, without the presence of invitees, to deliberate and vote upon any business, which may come before it.

SECTION 5. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Council may be called by the Chairperson or majority of the voting members of the Council at such times and places as either may determine.

SECTION 6. DEFINITION OF "ATTENDANCE." For all purposes under these bylaws, "attendance" shall be deemed to include physical (in person) attendance, or attendance by such telephonic, electronic, videoconference, or other means of interactive communication as the Section or the Council may make available. The Section and the Council will use reasonable efforts to make attendance possible by telephonic, electronic, videoconference, or other means of interactive communication for members wishing to attend any meeting by telephone, electronic, videoconference, or other means of interactive communication.

SECTION 7. QUORUM. Attendance by ~~ten (10)~~ the majority of voting members of the Council constitutes a quorum ~~on~~ for both regular and special meetings of the Council.

SECTION 8. CONTROLLING VOTE. Provided there is a quorum present at the inception of the meeting, the Council shall act pursuant to a majority of those in attendance at regular and special meetings of the Council; and the Chairperson, or Chairperson-Elect presiding in the Chairperson's absence, may vote only to break a tie.

SECTION 9. FAILURE TO ATTEND MEETINGS. If any Council member fails to attend three (3) consecutive Council meetings without an excuse approved by the Council, a majority of the whole Council may remove that Council member at any Council meeting thereafter. If the Council so removes a Council member, the Council may then fill the vacancy in accordance with Section 3 of this Article.

ARTICLE VII SECTION MEETINGS

SECTION 1. ANNUAL MEETING. The annual meeting of the Section shall be held during and at the same place as the Annual Meeting of the State Bar of Michigan or at such other place and time as the Council designates. The Council shall, in scheduling the annual meeting, take into account location, geographic distribution of members, electronic or similar accessibility, and scheduling of other events. The annual meeting will include such programs and order of business as the Council (or, in the absence of a designation by the Council, the Chairperson) designates.

SECTION 2. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Section may be called by the Chairperson or by a majority of the voting members of the Council at such times and places as either may determine.

SECTION 3. QUORUM. The following numbers of voting members constitute a quorum at each respective type of meeting.

Regular Section meetings (not the annual meeting).....	10
Special meetings.....	10
Annual meeting.....	20

provided, however, that at any annual meeting that is duly noticed to the Section membership and or that is held during and at the same place as the regularly-scheduled annual convention of the

State Bar of Michigan such members of the Section who attend the annual meeting shall collectively constitute a quorum even if their number is less than the number stated above.

SECTION 4. CONTROLLING VOTE. Except as otherwise expressly provided in these bylaws, the vote of a majority of the voting members in attendance at a properly called meeting of the Section at which a quorum is present is the act of the Section.

ARTICLE VIII MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

SECTION 1. FISCAL YEAR. The fiscal year of the section shall be the same as that of the State Bar of Michigan.

SECTION 2. DEBTS. All debts incurred by the Section, before being forwarded to the Treasurer or to the Executive Director of the State Bar of Michigan for payment, shall first be approved by the Chairperson or by the Treasurer, or, if the Council shall so direct, by both of them.

SECTION 3. COMPENSATION. No salary or compensation of any kind shall be paid to any Officer, Council, or committee member.

SECTION 4. PUBLIC POLICY POSITIONS.

(a) Generally, neither the Section nor the Council may take or disclose to the public any policy position except in compliance with the requirements of Article VIII of the Bylaws of the State Bar of Michigan. Upon the request of the voting members of the Section or of the Council, the Chairperson shall report to the State Bar Board of Commissioners for further action any resolution adopted or action taken by the Section. If a provision of these Bylaws and a provision of the bylaws of the State Bar of Michigan conflict with regard to public policy positions, the provision of the bylaws of the State Bar of Michigan shall govern.

(b) Procedure.

(i) Normal Procedure

(A) Introduction. Should any member of the Section request that the Section endorse a policy position on a permissible policy issue, that member may introduce that request, in writing, at a Section Meeting. Any such request must include that member's reason, in detail, for requesting Section endorsement.

(B) Referral to Committee. If the Section approves continued action on the request, the Chairperson shall refer the request to the appropriate Section committee for study and report by the next meeting. If the policy position does not fall under the ordinary responsibilities of any committee, the Section may create a special committee to study the proposed policy position.

(C) Action by the Committee. The committee shall consider the proposed

policy position and shall prepare recommendations thereon and report its recommendations to the Council as reasonably required by the Chairperson. It is not necessary that any particular recommendation of the committee have the support of any particular number of those serving on the committee. The report of the committee may include reasoned dissent.

- (D) Action by the Council. Within a reasonable time after receipt of the committee report, the Council shall consider the committee's report and the policy position. If the Council, by majority vote, recommends adoption of the policy position, whether as reported by the committee or with changes, it shall cause its recommendation, together with the complete and accurate text of said policy position, to be published in the Michigan Bar Journal or the Section newsletter.
 - (E) Meeting Requirements – Timing and Notice. The Section may consider and approve the recommendation of the Council and the policy position at any meeting of the Section that occurs at least thirty (30) days after publication of the recommendation and the policy position, provided that, if the meeting is other than an annual meeting of the section, the notice for the meeting must state that the recommendation and the policy position are to be considered.
 - (F) Approval Requirements. The vote of two thirds of members of the Section who have voting rights and who are present at a meeting of the Section at which a quorum is present and for which the requirements of subsection (E) are met is required in order to adopt a policy position.
- (ii) Urgent Matters
- (A) Introduction. Should a request with regard to a public policy issue require prompt action and no regular Section Meeting is scheduled within 30 days, the member may submit his or her request, in writing, to the Chairperson. In describing the reason for endorsement, that writing must set forth the need for action prior to the next Section Meeting.
 - (B) Referral to Council and Committee. The Chairperson shall forward that request to the Council and the Council may refer the request to the appropriate committee or create a special working group to study and report on the proposed endorsement at the next regular Section meeting or as set forth in this Section 5.
 - (C) Action by the Committee. If the Council refers the policy position to a committee, the committee shall consider the proposed policy position and shall prepare recommendations thereon and report its recommendations to the Council as reasonably required by the Chairperson. It is not necessary that any particular recommendation of the committee have the support of any particular number of those serving on the committee. The report of the committee may include reasoned dissent.

- (D) Voting. Should circumstances, as determined by the Chairperson or the Council, reasonably dictate that the request be expedited for approval by the Section, the Council or the committee or working group will take reasonable measures to notify Section members of the proposed policy position, including publishing the request on the Section web page, sending the request electronically to members and/or mailing the request to members. The Chairperson or the Council may ask the members of the Section to vote on the proposal “as is,” save for minor editorial changes and may specify reasonable means and time periods (not to be less than 10 days) for voting, with due consideration to electronic and other means reasonably designed to allow widespread participation by Section members. A vote of 2/3 of those responding to the request to endorse the proposal will constitute the endorsement by the Section of the proposal, provided that at least 20 Section members have voted.
- (c) Reporting and Effect of Adoption. If the Section adopts a policy position, the Chairperson shall report the adoption and any related recommendations as provided in the Bylaws of the State Bar of Michigan. The effect of the policy position shall be as stated in the Bylaws of the State Bar of Michigan.

SECTION 5. ELECTRONIC ENABLEMENT AND NOTICES.

- (a) Notices. Any notice required or permitted by these bylaws may be given by
 - (i) depositing such notice in the United States Mail anywhere in the State of Michigan, addressed to the recipient, and with first class postage attached,
 - (ii) personally delivering such notice, or
 - (iii) transmitting such notice by electronic mail.

As to items (i) and (iii) above, notice may be sent to the last known address in the Section’s records.

- (b) Writings Requirements. To the maximum extent allowable by the bylaws or other governing documents of the State Bar of Michigan, the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (“UETA”), the Electronic Signatures in Global and National Transactions Act (“E-Sign”), or other applicable law or rule, where any provision of these bylaws requires a writing or that a notice or other communication be in writing, an electronic record (as that term is defined in UETA) satisfies the requirement. Where any provision of these bylaws requires a signature, an electronic signature (as that term is defined in UETA) satisfies the requirement.
- (c) Presumptions Regarding Electronic Transmissions. The Council shall be entitled to assume the authenticity of any electronic communication apparently sent from an e-mail or other electronic address (including fax machine telephone number) given by an member as that member’s electronic address. To the maximum extent allowable by applicable law or rules, each electronic transmission shall be regarded as bearing or constituting an electronic signature unless an expression to the contrary is included in the electronic transmission. Without limiting the foregoing, any typed name or identification heading or footer shall be regarded as

an electronic signature unless an expression to the contrary is included in the electronic transmission.

- (d) Action of the Council by Written Consent. Any vote or other action required or permitted to be taken by the Council may be taken by the written consent of a majority of the whole Council, provided that a record giving notice of the matter submitted for consent is transmitted to every Council member and, in the case of an action adopted by such consent, a record containing a summary of those consenting, those affirmatively withholding consent, and those not responding, is transmitted to every member of the Council within 10 days after the number of consents required for action is received. The Chairperson or the Secretary shall transmit such notices upon the written request of at least five members of the Council and may do so by any means, provide that, if a means other than an electronic record by e-mail is used, the notice shall also be sent as an electronic record by e-mail. The Chairperson or the Secretary may rely on the last known e-mail address for each member of the Council in the records of the Section. The Officer transmitting the notice shall receive all responses to such notice, shall tally the votes, and shall report to the members of the Council as required in this section. Without limiting other means of providing written consent, the consent of a member of the Council shall be sufficient if it contains a reference to the notice, expresses the consent of the member of the Council, and contains an electronic signature (which may take the form of a typed name) of the member of the Council.

ARTICLE IX AMENDMENTS

SECTION 1. AMENDMENTS. These bylaws may be amended at any annual meeting of the Section by a vote of two-thirds of the members of the Section present and voting, provided there is a quorum; and provided further that any such proposed amendment shall first have been submitted for its recommendation to the Council and provided further that no amendment so adopted shall become effective until approved by the Board of Commissioners of the State Bar of Michigan.

SECTION 2. PROCEDURES. Any proposed amendment of these bylaws shall first be submitted in writing to the Council in the form of a petition signed by at least ten (10) members of the Section and considered by the Council at a regular or special meeting prior to the annual meeting of the Section at which it is to be addressed. The Council shall consider the proposed amendment at such a meeting and shall prepare recommendations thereon; and those recommendations, together with a complete and accurate text of said proposed amendments, shall be published in the Michigan Bar Journal or Section newsletter at least thirty (30) days prior to the annual meeting of the Section at which the amendment is to be considered.

Created 1985

Revised 1/31/00

Revised 8/3/04

Dues increase effective 10/1/04

Amended 11/16/07

Amended 09/27/12